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AB 529 ADAPTIVE REUSE WORKING GROUP 
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION TEMPLATE GUIDELINE 

The following guideline is intended to facilitate stakeholder  feedback  to HCD’s Request for   
Information  (RFI)  on adaptive reuse. In order  to ensure feedback can be organized and accurately  
reflected  in  HCD’s  findings,  please  fill  out  a  separate  form  for  each  individual  recommendation  that 
you are proposing. Responses are due by  5:00 pm  PST on December 5,  2024.  

Respondent Information 
Providing the following personal information is voluntary and you may leave these sections blank if 
you would like to remain anonymous. While the name of an organization, entity, or agency may 
become part of the public record and be included with the published responses to this RFI, please 
note that the personal information (name, email contact information) of individuals (i.e., natural 
persons) will not be disclosed or published with the responses and will not become part of the public 
record, except as authorized or required by law. However, you have the option of consenting to HCD 
disclosing and/or publishing your name when posting your response/comment as indicated below. If 
you would like to be added to HCD’s list of interested stakeholders who may be contacted as this 
development process pertaining to the identification of challenges and opportunities for adaptive 
reuse within the scope of AB 529 continues and progresses, please also indicate your preference in 
the section below. 

Name 
Organization/Entity/Agency or 
Affiliation 
Public Email Contact Information 
Add to Contact List ☐ ☐Yes  or  No

☐ (OPTIONAL) I consent to HCD disclosing and/or publishing my name when posting my
response/comment to this RFI.

Please provide Areas of Interest in Adaptive Reuse Report/Development Process: 
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Response 
Assembly Bill 529 includes specific issue areas that the working group may consider. Which of these 
does this specific response fall into? Please select a response from the following Area of Interest: 

1. Energy and Insulation Upgrades

 

 
       

 

               
   

       

               

             

2. Fire-rated Assemblies
3. Water and Sewer Piping

4. Energy infrastructure, including individual utility meter upgrades

5. Habitability

6. Any other local or state building requirement that may render the conversion or reuse of
an existing building financially infeasible for residential uses

What are the opportunities that help support adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above? 

What are the challenges to adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above? 
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Proposal 
If you are proposing - specific amendments to the building standards, or other related health and 
safety standards, please fill out the boxes below. 

Suggested Amendments or Description 

Rationale for Proposal 

Economic Impact of Proposal 

Describe if and how this proposal will impact any of the following: 

Will this proposal impact housing costs? 

Click here to select a response 

If yes: 
Describe the annual cost for each housing unit: 
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Will  this  proposal  impact  businesses  and  /  or  employees?  

CClick here to select a response. 

If yes: 

How many businesses would be impacted? 

Describe the types of businesses impacted. 

What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses impacted? 

Would this proposal impact small businesses? 

ClicClickk   herheree   toto   sseellecect t   aa   rresesponsponsee.   

If yes: 
How many small businesses would be impacted? 

What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses? 
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Will  this  proposal  have  an  impact  on  jobs  or  occupations?  

ClicClickk   herheree   toto   sseellecect t   aa   rresesponsponsee.   

Click here to a respons

Click here to a espons

If yes: 
How many jobs will be created? 

How many jobs will be eliminated? 

Describe the types of jobs or occupations impacted. 

Would this proposal affect the ability of California businesses to compete with other states? 

select eClick here to select a response. 

If yes, please explain briefly. 

Will this proposal have an impact on individuals? 

select rClick here to select a response.e 

If yes, please indicate initial and annual ongoing costs to individuals below. 
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Economic Benefit of Suggested Amendments 

Describe the benefits of the suggested amendments to building standards, including but not limited 
to, the health and welfare of California residents and the environment, the total annual statewide 
benefit in dollars, and any expansion of businesses. 
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	AB 529 ADAPTIVE REUSE WORKING GROUP REQUEST FOR INFORMATION TEMPLATE GUIDELINE
	Respondent Information

	Name: Joseph S. Bishop
	OrganizationEntityAgency or Affiliation: City of Arcata, Building Department
	Public Email Contact Information: jbishop@cityofarcata.org
	OPTIONAL I consent to HCD disclosing andor publishing my name when posting my: On
	Please provide Areas of Interest in Adaptive Reuse Report/Development Process:: I serve as the Building Official for a local jurisdiction. My area of interest is specifically in building code compliance. I see the need for housing, but it is critical that all housing be in compliance with the building code at the time of construction. The building code is a minimum standard for protecting the health and safety of occupants and the community.
	What are the opportunities that help support adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above?: The inclusion of fire sprinklers has made buildings safer. Sprinkler systems are expensive, but that cost is offset by the reduction of required fire-rated assemblies. Sprinkler systems make adaptive reuse more feasible by reducing the need for fire rated assemblies, this removes some design barriers.
	What are the challenges to adaptive reuse related to the topic selected above?: Buildings over four units require two means of egress. If the building is also over two stories, this means two stairwells. If the building is also over 3 stories, this means it is required to have two stairwells and an elevator. These limitations make mid-sized apartment buildings infeasible. 
	Suggested Amendments or Description: With certain trade-offs, mid sized apartment buildings should be allowed to have only one stairwell. Table 1006.3.3 of the fire and building code could be amended to "12 dwelling units" with a footnote. The footnote could included added provisions for buildings with 5-8 dwelling units, and 9-12 dwelling units. 

I would recommend that the size of the single stairwell be increased by 12" for 5-8 units, and 18" for 9-12 units. I would also recommend that ventilation requirements be added/increased, such as a positive pressure system. The single stairwell should have a higher fire-rating, and should have a more robust NFPA 13 sprinkler system (instead of 13R).

Additionally, I would recommend that the elevator be enlarged to accept a stretcher, and potentially add other features found in CBC 403.6.
	Rationale for Proposal: Allowing a larger number of units in a building with only one stairwell will make mid-sized apartment buildings more feasible. Adding offsetting features, such as larger stairwells, will help balance out the additional risks. 

Mid-sized apartment buildings are more affordable to build, and they are more desirable to the occupants. Many cities have already made allowances for this such as Seattle, WA. With the additional features I propose, the benefits outweigh the risks.
	Describe the annual cost for each housing unit:: Unknown. Increasing housing stock should reduce the over-inflation of rental stock.
	What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses?: 
	How many small businesses would be impacted?: 
	How many businesses would be impacted?: 
	Describe the types of businesses impacted: 
	What would be the initial and annual ongoing costs to businesses impacted?: 
	Describe the benefits of the suggested amendments to building standards,: Allowing this increase in number of units with only one stairwell will make it easier to design and build mid sized apartment buildings. This creates more housing, which is a major priority of the State. Additionally, those units will be more desirable to the occupants. 

Many buildings that are good candidates for adaptive reuse are of the right size to accommodate 5-12 units but may be rejected for the fact that it would require two stairwells. This allowance would provide more incentive to do these projects.
	If yes, please indicate initial and annual ongoing costs to individuals below: Occupants of smaller apartment buildings experience a better quality of life because more units will have multiple exterior walls. In larger multifamily buildings only the corner units get two walls, all of the other units only have one exterior wall. Two or more exterior walls offers better light and ventilation. 
	If yes, please explain briefly: California is already one of the most expensive places to build. Since other States have done similar things, this would make CA more competitive with them.
	Describe the types of jobs or occupations impacted: Increased construction activity will generate more construction related jobs.
	How many jobs will be eliminated?: 
	How many jobs will be created?: 
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